Stories from the Mercy Hospital Archives

By Kathleen M. Washy

Mercy Hospital has many interesting stories, some of which have been passed down and recorded within the documents found in the Mercy Hospital Archives.

Both the Mercy Hospital Annals, Begun in 1908 and Sister M. Cornelius Meerwald’s book, History of the Pittsburgh Mercy Hospital 1843-1959, provide wonderful, image-filled accounts of Mercy Hospital history, giving readers an interesting glimpse of what life was like in the late 1800s and early 1900s.

One story takes place in the 1870s. Soon after being assigned to work at the hospital, Sister Bernadette had the duty of making nightly rounds, checking to make sure everyone and everything was in its proper place.

"Just before midnight, [Sister Bernadette] made her last round. The lights were all turned low; everyone seemed to be sleeping quietly; as she came along the second floor towards the back stairs, her heart stood still. For there leaning against the banister of the stairs stood what appeared to her to be an intoxicated man, hat pulled down over his face.

She advanced a step and again repeated: 'I said, Good evening to you.' At that moment she heard heavy steps coming from the stairs. 'Gentlemen always answer ladies; answer.' She decided she would have to act and yet not awaken the patients, so they wandered down to a spot just below Stevenson Street. There they found a covered seat. Here they sat down. It was a beautiful morning and the quiet was very pleasing to Sister Clemenza after the active night duty.

Suddenly a tremor went through the seat as though some animal was trying to escape from under it; looking down they were dumbfounded to find their feet going up in the air; they were swung around and began to descend; down they went until they landed on Second Avenue by the railroad tracks. They had taken a seat in the old incline that used to operate near the head of Stevenson Street. When the man came to collect their fares, he found two nuns without a penny to their names. They got a free ride back which ended the morning's airing."

The final story is one of the compassion and loyalty of the Sisters of Mercy. Throughout much of its history, Mercy Hospital was home to several "residents," that is, individuals who had physical limitations but were desirous of a meaningful occupation. The very first "residenter" was Julia Kelly, who lived at Mercy for over 70 years, from 1849 until her death in 1923. She had very poor eyesight when she first came to Mercy. She began by working "faithfully in the hospital, giving service whenever needed, but chiefly in the laundry. As time passed on, her work grew more limited in its nature as her eyesight was failing gradually and she could do only such tasks as were familiar to her." As her eyesight and health continued to diminish, Julia dedicated more of her time to prayer. In an entry in the Hospital Annals, one of the authors writes "[Julia's] life of prayer and contemplation is now almost marvelous and is a great source of comfort to the members of this busy household ...." The Sisters were able to find the silver lining in Julia's infirmities.

These stories are seamlessly woven into the hospital's colorful and vibrant history, appearing alongside the many medical advances, the quality and compassionate care given to the patients, and the ongoing dedication of the Sisters of Mercy to their Catholic health ministry. By including tales such as these, the histories provide a broad picture of what life at the hospital was like at the time.

1. Meerwald, History of the Pittsburgh Mercy Hospital 1943-1959, p. 144-45
3. Mercy Hospital Annals, Begun in 1908

---

**Historical Society Board of Directors**
- Blanche McGuire, President
- Anthony P. Joseph, Vice President
- Father James Garvey, Secretary
- Paul Demilio, Treasurer
- Mike Aquilina
- Msgr. Russell Duker
- John Farmerie
- Robert Fenimore
- Regina Kelly
- Father David Kriss
- Robert and Mary Lloyd
- Kathleen M. Washy

**Membership Makes Our Work Possible**
- Sustaining Member $25
- Institutional Member $15
- Individual Member $10
- Individual Vowed Religious $5

Additional donations help the society to complete research, publishing and preservation projects in local Church history. To find out more, contact us at Catholic Historical Society of Western Pa., Synod Hall, 125 North Craig Street, Pittsburgh, PA 15213-1510.